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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Academy is a red brick 2 1/2 story rectangular struc-
ture, with the gable end facing the road. The foundation of
native stone is at grade level on three sides, which enabled
the basement to be used as a classroom in the school. The
exterior has never been altered and appears the same as it did
in 1809, when the building was constructed. The only exceptions
being the absence of shutters on the windows, a newly
constructed set of wooden steps on the East side and an asphalt
roof over the original wooden shingles. The '"S" tie rods are
clearly visible on the front and rear gables. These '"S'. are
the ends of interior bracing rods and togethewith the simple
pilasters and cornice of the front entrance identify the building
as being in the Fedexal--style. The front door, porch and cornices
are contempopary to the building. The sash contain 4 over 4 lights
on the first and second stories with 6 over 6 lights at the hase .level.

The exterior brick work is of Flemish bond on the two side
walls with a bond consisting of one row of headers followed by
five rows of stretchers on the front and rear gable ends. There
is a large chimney in the rear gable, which serviced either
two or three fireplaces, which have been closed. All the lintels
are of brick and are splayed which adds an attractive variation
to the overall simple composition of the Academy.

The interior is as simple and austere as the exterior,
with the original partitioning remaining. Some additional
partitioning has been added to make the building usable as the
township hall. There has also been constructed a large walk-in
safe in the basement. Portions of the flooring are original as
in the interior stairway. The interior walls are plaster with
a crude wooden wainscoting half way up as is found in the 18th
century schools of the area. ’

The exterior cornice at the roof level is well executed
and hangs over the side and gable walls about 8 inches. At
the gable end the cornice forms a return for about 2 feet, which
adds considerably to the restrained Federal character. of the
building. This character is also evident in the front entrance-
way, which is one of the few locations on the structure where
detailing is evident. The four paneled door is encased by
simple pilasters topped by modified doric capitals, architrave
with dentil and top cornice molding. '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Education

The Brick Academy, built in 1809, is representative of
the numerous classical seminaries created in New Jersey during the
19th century for educating the male children of wealthy and
respectahle citizens of the state. The Basking Ridge Classical
School enrolling upwards to 40 students was one of the more
popular and renowned schools in the state.

As a result of the social types of youngsters entered in
the theological academy an inordinate number of its graduates
became distinguished figures. Among these were_Samuel Southard,
William Dayton, Theodore Frelinghuysen, David Kirkpartick, and

_Robert Stockton. Pupils from as far away as Virginia, Maryland,
Pennsylvania. and New York were enrolled in the academy.
~ The Academy continued as a private classical school until '
1840 when it closed. Ten years later it bacame part of the ;
Basking Ridge School District. Through an 1894 Act of the State
Legislature the building became part of the public school

system and operated as such until 1903 when a new school was -
constructed.

Religion/Eduéétion

Robert Finley (1772-1817), born in Princeton, New Jersey,
gradudtéd from the College of New Jersey (Princeton) in 1787.
In the same year he became the principal of a grammar school
connected with the college.. Later in charge of an academy at
Allentown he left in 1791 to teach in Charleston, South Carolina.
Upon returning to New Jersey he was licensed by the New Brunswick
presbytery.

In 1797 he became alﬁastor at Basking Ridge when he also
conducted an academy which became renowned throughout the Middle
Atlantic states.

Originally classes were conducted in Dr. Finley's own
home, but the popularity of the academy eventually forced the
construction of the present brick academy at 15 West Oak Street,
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Religion/Education (cont)

Parti&ly finaced from personal resources, wealthy New York
City merchants provided the bulk of the expenses of constructing
the academy.

Finley left Basking Ridge in 1817 to become President of
the University of Georgia and died in the same year.

Finley's successor, William Craig Brownlee (1783-1860),
remained at Basking Ridge for 8 years and continued educating
of the wealthy and respectable in the classical seminary.

Later, Brownlee, a University of Glasgow graduate, taught
Latin and Greek at Rutgers College for a short time and then
became a minister of the Collegiate Reformed Dutch Church in
New York remaining until 1848. While there he was the editor
of the Dutch Church Magazine and author of many religious
publications.

Political

From 1903 to 1924 the structure was used as the meeting
hall for the local American Order of Union Workers.
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